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A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state board for 
career and technical education. 
 

Minutes:                                                 1-20 

 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Gavels in and announces the start of testimony 
for HB 1019 as an overview of the bill. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Notes that all members were present at the 
beginning of the meeting. 
 
(1:00) Wayde Sick: State Director of the Department of Career and Technical Education 
(CTE). Introduces self, gives an introduction into the Department of Career and Technical 
Education and begins presenting attachment 1 to the committee.  
 
(9:00) Mr. Sick: Opens attachment 2 and examines figures in attachment 2 about data 
presented annually for the enrollment in CTE programs. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: Of the secondary concentrators, is there potential for dual 
credit programs? 
 
Mr. Sick: Yes, there are opportunities for many to receive dual credit. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: What are the requirements for dual credit? 
 
Mr. Sick: Localized agreement between school and university.  
 
(11:00) Representative Mark Sanford: Is the basis for dual credit dependent on the 
qualification of the high school secondary teacher?  
 
Mr. Sick: Yes.  
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Dan Ruth: Instructor must have a degree to the level above what they are teaching in order 
for the course to be available for dual credit.  
 
(12:20) Mr. Sick: Returns to presenting attachment 2. 
 
(13:50) Mr. Sick: Due to the figures in attachment 2, CTE enrolled students, specifically 
Native American students, had a higher rate of graduation when enrolled in a CTE course. 
Continues presenting attachment 2.  
 
(17:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: Do you have a handout on the audit and 
all of the findings? 
 
Mr. Sick: We do not, but we can get you this. Returns to attachment 2.  
 
(18:00) Mr. Sick: Continues to describe the audit and the multiple findings produced from 
the audit, which is found on page 6 of attachment 1. 
 
(20:25) Chairman Representative David Monson: So all of the findings have or are being 
corrected? 
 
Mr. Sick: Yes, Chairman, they are either already fixed and taken into effect for the 2018-
2019 school year or are currently being fixed. Continues explaining attachment 2.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: What is your source of special funds? 
 
(21:50) Mr. Sick: We collect fees from private training providers. Continues presenting 
attachment 2.  
 
(25:45) Chairman Representative David Monson: When you put these budgets together, 
you did eliminate the STEMii completely, any others completely eliminated? 
 
Mr. Sick: The part-time adult was fully eliminated.   
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I assume you are having a lot of trouble finding 
teachers for some of these areas in CTE?  
 
Mr. Sick: Just like any educator position they are hard to fill. The Agriculture education at 
NDSU has seen higher enrollment. The trade industry is hardest to fill because we are trying 
to convince the individual to move from industry into the classroom.  
 
(28:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: Do you certify the CTE teachers? 
 
Mr. Sick: We refer and endorse them to SPV and they certify them. Continues to explain the 
budget recommendations and overview in attachment 2.  
 
(31:55) Chairman Representative David Monson: What do you see as the difference 
between a career academy and a career tech ed. center? 
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Mr. Sick: Where dual credit and post-secondary students can both be studying there and 
many general courses are integrated into the CTE programs also. There are career 
academy’s that have general ed. is embedded into CTE’s.   
 
(32:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: $0 was put into by the state and now we 
are being asked to put in $30M. Bismarck did there’s with private funds.  
 
Mr. Sick: They were able to do it on their own within the private sector, correct. Returns to 
attachment 2.  
 
(35:40) Chairman Representative David Monson: I will have questions for Alan Peterson.  
 
Mr. Sick: Returns to attachment 2. 
 
(37:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: So if we don’t put any money into 
Marketplace for Kids it will disappear? 
 
Mr. Sick: Yes, it is roughly 60% of the budget for Marketplace for Kids comes from the state. 
The rest comes from the private sector and business donations. 
 
(39:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: So the adult farm management will bring 
it back to the base? 
 
Mr. Sick: Yes, to the base $2M 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: What are the reimbursement rates? 
 
Mr. Sick: Reimbursing the career tech centers at 40%, FACS at 19%, career development 
program at 35% and all the other secondary programs at 27%.  
 
Representative Mark Sanford: This would have what impact on them?  
 
Mr. Sick: The estimates would go from 27 to 25%.  
 
(40:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: Can you give us that information on a 
handout please? 
 
Mr. Sick: Yes, we can.  
 
(40:45) Sarah Vollmer: TrainND State-wide Director. Passed out attachment 3, introduced 
self to the committee and began presenting attachment 3.  
 
(43:30) Ms. Vollmer: Explains the contributions by different entities as seen on attachment 
3.  
 
(46:00) Ms. Vollmer: More than 75% of businesses in North Dakota contain 10 or fewer 
employees. Continues to present attachment 3.  
 



House Appropriations Committee - Education and Environment Division 
HB 1019 
1/9/2019 
Page 4  
   

(49:30) Dave Steffen: Director of TrainND North East. I am here to testify in favor of HB 
1019. Introduces self as a stand-in for Frank Schill and begins to read Mr. Schill’s written 
testimony, which can be found on attachment 4.  
 
(53:50) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Could you please repeat what you 
said about Sitting Bull College? 
 
Ms. Vollmer: The TrainND of the Southwest region assisted Sitting Bull College for several 
summers in providing a welding instructor when they did not have an instructor.  
 
(54:20) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: The Dept. of Commerce talked about 
the grants to Tribal Colleges and $500,000 is what the Legislature did. We only contributed 
that to one, because Tribal Colleges were not reporting any type of performance. Standing 
Rock did not provide us with any performance standards or meeting any performance 
standards, so they others did not receive the funding. Can help me understand why? 
 
Ms. Vollmer: Sitting Bull College contacted TrainND to provided welding instruction to their 
college so we provided that.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: How long did that last? 
 
Ms. Vollmer: They lasted 2 summer programs and about 8 weeks each.  
 
(56:15) Chairman Representative David Monson: Did they provide you any benefit 
feedback? 
 
Ms. Vollmer: The feedback we got was just from the instructor and not from any of the actual 
students.  
 
(57:15) Representative Mark Sanford: When you do something for 8 weeks in the summer 
does that lead to certification?  
 
Ms. Vollmer: Mostly what I handled was welding training that sends you into a certification 
program afterwards.  
 
(58:15) Representative Mark Sanford: So the certification is transferrable around the 
country? 
 
Ms. Vollmer: Yes, they are transferrable. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: Are certifications being recognized for credit by higher 
education? 
 
(59:00) Ms. Vollmer: Yes, they can be recognized. We also handle Certified Nurse Assistant 
(CNA) training. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: A TrainND program has the potential to lead to certification 
or credit in a 2 to 4-year program? 
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(1:00:15) Ms. Vollmer: Yes, absolutely. We can offer certifications for people involved in IT 
and Cyber Security as well.  
 
Representative Mark Sanford: Do you utilize distance learning? 
 
Ms. Vollmer: Yes, we do. The main topics are Cyber Security and a course for CNA. They 
would just have to come for labs and clinical portion.  
 
(1:01:50) Representative Mark Sanford: Is there a challenge finding qualified instructors? 
 
Ms. Vollmer: As far as campuses, one like Bismarck State College (BSC) has at least 3 
officials in charge of helping with this. There are challenges, but we have established a great 
base to lead this into a 4-year program. 
 
(1:03:15) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: When you entered into an 
agreement with Sitting Bull College, did you require any performance type report for that 
assistance? 
 
Ms. Vollmer: It went through a trend grant through BSC, but Sitting Bull College could not 
hire a welding instructor, so we hired out the BSC instructor over the summer to instruct the 
course. Their portion of the trend grant was supply welding training to Sitting Bull College.   
  
(1:05:15) Chairman Representative David Monson: We are talking about two different 
programs here. The 2-year college usually provide these services and have you provided 
any contract services through tribal colleges to report any progress to you? 
 
(1:06:00) Ms. Vollmer: No, not through them. We have had contracts with the school districts 
to provide training and development down there.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So the tribal colleges are just another client 
basically? 
 
Ms. Vollmer: Yes, for the most part. 
 
(1:07:15) Alan Peterson: State Director for the North Dakota Center for Distance Education 
(NDCDE). Passed out attachments 5, 6 and 7, introduced self to committee and began the 
overview of attachment 5. 
 
(1:11:00) Mr. Peterson: The original purpose of NDCDE was to make sure rural students 
could move past 8th grade and obtain full education. Also to provide credit recovery if the first 
attempt was not successful.  
 
(1:13:50) Mr. Peterson: The role we provide is a school for full-time students who often have 
special circumstances, which were listed on page 1 of attachment 5.  
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Mr. Peterson: We now have 2 schools where we share contracts with instructors. We 
reached out to a part-time Spanish teacher in Wyndmere, paid the second half of the contract 
and the teacher now teaches 70 students for us.  
 
(1:16:40) Representative Mike Nathe: Last session not all the schools were printing courses 
in their fall books, but we amended that correct? 
 
Mr. Peterson: Yes, we put together 2 amendments that all school districts reported on. They 
could then make it part of their registration process, which lead to a 30% increase in students 
this year.  
 
(1:18:50) Representative Mike Nathe: Are all the schools utilizing CDE? 
 
Mr. Peterson: The outside sources are considerably reduced and we have continued to 
increase every year. We will set our record this year at 12,000 enrollments, which makes 600 
full-time students. 8.5 years ago was 500 enrollments. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: Any schools not utilizing CDE? 
 
Mr. Peterson: No, every school district had taken courses from us and we have some 
elementary programs now and even kindergarten.  
 
(1:21:15) Chairman Representative David Monson: When you are talking on line courses, 
you aren’t talking iTV, but are they face to face courses with teacher and student.  
 
Mr. Peterson: Yes, we stopped using iTV expect for reading in 2012, because it was too 
expensive. Our full-time teachers are assigned between 120-150 students and you cannot 
use iTV. 
 
(1:22:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: What percentage of courses are 
delivered to ND students?  
 
(1:22:40) Mr. Peterson: Of the 12,000 on line courses about 10,000.  
 
Mr. Peterson: We support Driver’s Education curriculum, but do not supply the instructors. 
Continues onto page 2 of attachment 5.  
 
(1:25:10) Mr. Peterson: Our fastest increasing course load has been Career and Technical 
Education.  
 
(1:26:25) Mr. Peterson: We will be traveling to Saskatchewan to review a working model 
and will report back to you in February.  
 
(1:27:10) Mr. Peterson: We have been given around $6M in general funds and $2.9M in 
special funds per biennium. I also report quarterly. We get them in chunks, $3M per year and 
the rest in fees.  
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Mr. Peterson: Introduces attachment 6 as a mock draft bill to outline a student support 
payment in part 1 and part 2 we would continue to charge course fees.  
 
(1:29:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: What do you charge those people 
signing up? 
 
Mr. Peterson: Set at $169 per course, but it is an average based on robotic courses and 
Advanced Placement courses that generally have more involved and out of state courses 
have extra fees as well.  
 
(1:30:15) Mr. Peterson: Begins closing review of attachment 5 and his written testimony. 
We are not asking for more money, just a different source. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We have to see this budget bill before we see 
the Senate bill from Senator Schaible. We will need to know a number before then.  
 
(1:31:55) Mr. Peterson: The governor recommended $8.9M. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: It should really be a wash because the funds 
will be going towards you instead of the actual school district. 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: Can we get a copy of your slides? (attachment 7) 
 
Mr. Peterson: I sent a copy to Chairman Representative David Monson. 
 
(1:34:00) Levi Helmuth: Director of Adult Farm Management. Introduced self and begins 
overview of Adult Farm Management by reading written testimony. The mission statement is 
to provide lifelong opportunities in economic and financial management for individuals 
involved in the farming and ranching business.  
 
Mr. Helmuth: This bill calls to cut 60% of Adult Farm Management due unused funds. It took 
time to hire new staff, which lead to the unused funds, which are in the proposed cuts. The 
new staff has been hired.  
 
(1:38:00) Mr. Helmuth: I ask that you continue to fund the Adult Farm Management.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Do you ever graduate from this program? 
 
Mr. Helmuth: We bring in new enrollees all the time, but you do not really every graduate 
because farm cycles are different every year, so many of the enrolled people stay on.  
 
(1:39:30) Mr. Helmuth: The older enrollees who have been around a long time help with 
billing troubles and help newer farmers out. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We do not keep rewarding past students for 
credits. These people keep taking the same course over and over and we keep paying for it.  
 
Mr. Helmuth: Thanks the committee for their time. 



House Appropriations Committee - Education and Environment Division 
HB 1019 
1/9/2019 
Page 8  
   

 
(1:41:00) Bob Heitkamp: Executive Director of Marketplace for Kids. Passed out 
attachment 8, introduced self and began presenting attachment 8.  
 
(1:44:15) Melissa Meyer: Career Advisor from Williston.  Began presenting from attachment 
8. Thanks committee and asks for questions. 
 
(1:47:10) Kent Ellis: Introduced self to committee as someone who works around the state 
of North Dakota and works with Marketplace for Kids. Continues to present from attachment 
8 and introduces the overview of CTE and the role it plays in Marketplace for Kids.  
 
Mr. Ellis: Marketplace for Kids is a real linkage from early school onto technical education 
and apprenticeships.  
 
(1:49:00) Representative Mike Schatz: What kind of education attendance do you get on 
the days you offer? 
 
Mr. Ellis: It varies on the days and the area. We typically have pretty good performance. 
 
(1:50:30) Mr. Heitkamp: Total attendance was a 21% increase in 1 year.  
 
Representative Mike Schatz: How do you select the dates, since they are primarily school 
days? 
 
Mr. Heitkamp: It is a part of school curriculum on those days and they take a field trip. Usually 
an off day at the college campus and we are given the full campus.  
 
(1:51:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: Did you have over 1,400 kids in one 
day in Williston? 
 
Mr. Heitkamp: Yes. They also returned to school afterwards. 
 
(1:51:45) Chairman Representative David Monson: It was one time funded, what did the 
Governor recommend? 
 
Mr. Heitkamp: It was the last Governor cycle and one time funded. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: You went from $2.4M and now only want 
$300K? 
 
Mr. Heitkamp: Yes, that’s what it was prior. Part of that funding goes directly to the schools 
for project reimbursement.  
 
(1:53:00) Mr. Sick: The $300K was budget cuts, not the funding. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Do you charge the schools? 
 
Mr. Heitkamp: We do not charge a dime and even refund bus trips. 
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(1:53:45) Chairman Representative David Monson: What do you do if you lose funding? 
 
Mr. Heitkamp: We would lose approximately 60% of our program and have grown over 21% 
in the last year. 
 
(1:54:50) Mr. Ellis: We will be looking at hands on courses for 8th graders and major technical 
career fares around the middle schools.  
 
(1:55:40) Mr. Sick: I believe we are at our allotted time, there are people from Fargo, Minot 
and Watford City that wanted to discuss Career Academy’s.   
 
Representative Mark Sanford: Is there middle school reimbursement for these programs?  
 
Mr. Sick: Middle schools do reimburse in some STEM programs. CTE centers are 
reimbursed for some of their supplies.  
 
(1:57:00) Morgan Forness: Superintendent of Northern Cass Schools. Passed out 
attachment 9 and 10, introduced self and began presenting attachment 9 on career 
workforce academy.  
 
Mr. Forness: We support HB 1019. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: Do you belong to a consortium? 
 
(2:01:30) Mr. Forness: We partnered with Fargo schools. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: Are they delivered in your schools? 
 
Mr. Forness: They are offered all over the county. Whether it is online or traveling, but we 
have to partner. 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: Do you let the students drive to other schools during the 
school day? 
 
(2:02:40) Mr. Forness: Yes, some school policy allows for self-travel and others have 
provided buses. 
 
(2:03:15) Don Dabbert: Introduced self, passed out attachment 11 and began presenting 
attachment 11.  
 
Mr. Dabbert: Presented support for this bill. Continued presenting attachment 11. Asks if 
there are any questions. 
 
(2:07:00) Representative Mark Sanford: Do middle schools have exploratory programs in 
these areas? 
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Mr. Dabbert: The original shop classes are pretty much gone. All of these schools that come 
together and offer these programs is a huge advantage to spark some interest in young 
people. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: There are not exploratory programs from electronics to 
construction to engineering to power available to the middle school curriculum? 
 
(2:08:30) Mr. Dabbert: I cannot speak for the middle schools as a whole, but the schools I 
have visited do not carry these in their curriculum.  
 
Representative Mark Sanford: There are none offered from grades 6, 7 or 8? 
 
Mr. Dabbert: To my experience they do not appear to offer these anymore.  
 
(2:10:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: Mr. Sick would be the one to ask that 
question to.  
 
Mr. Dabbert: It could spark a fire and drive desire for these new students in order to keep 
our youth talent local. 
 
(2:11:45) Pam Stroklund: Career and Technical Education Director of Minot Public Schools. 
Filling in for Dr. Mark Vollmer. Passed out attachment 12 and began to present it to the 
committee.  
 
Ms. Stroklund: Offers support for HB 1019. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Is there a career tech ed program in Minot? 
 
Ms. Stroklund: We have 13 different programs we offer for area programs. 
 
(2:15:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: Do you offer iTV? 
 
Ms. Stroklund: We do not. We have over 400 students enrolled in biomedical classes 
throughout the area.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Do you envision students coming from all 
around? 
 
Ms. Stroklund: We do already offer that and the career academy would help pull in outside 
students.  
 
(2:16:50) Kelly Kronschnabel: Fire Chief for the City of Minot. Introduced self to committee 
and handed out attachment 13 and began to present it.  
 
Ms. Kronschnabel: Offers support for HB 1019 and asks for any questions. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: Is the vision that the facilities at the Magic City campus 
would expand? 
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Ms. Kronschnabel: I believe they would have a separate facility. 
 
(2:20:00) Heather Milbrath: Marketing Coordinator at Gooseneck Implement. Introduced 
self to committee and passed out attachment 14. 
 
Ms. Milbrath: offered support in favor of HB 1019. 
 
(2:21:30) Steven Holen: Superintendent for the McKenzie County Public School District #1 
in Watford City. Introduced self to committee and passed out attachment 15. Began to 
present from attachment 15.  
 
Mr. Holen: Offered support in favor of HB 1019.   
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: You would like one of these career academies 
built in Watford City? 
 
Mr. Holen: Absolutely and we have the resources for it.  
 
(2:27:20) Delore Zimmerman: Introduced self and handed out attachment 16. Began to 
present attachment 16 to the committee.  
 
Mr. Zimmerman: Offered support for HB 1019. 
 
(2:28:45) Mary Jensen: Introduced self and passed out attachment 17. 
 
Ms. Jensen: Offered support for the passing of HB 1019. 
 
(2:29:40) ElRoy Burkle: Introduced self, passed out attachment 18 and voiced support for 
the HB 1019. 
 
(2:30:45) Mason Sisk: Introduced self, passed out attachment 19 and voiced support for 
HB 1019.  
 
(2:32:15) Deana Weise: Introduced self, passed out attachment 20 and offered support in 
favor of HB 1019.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Anyone opposed to HB 1019? None in 
opposition. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Chairman closes the meeting.  
 
 
 
 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee - Education and Environment Division 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

HB 1019 
1/21/2019 

31079 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Parker Oswald 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state board for career 
and technical education. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Opens the hearing and attendance is taken. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: Introduces his grandsons who are attending the meeting 
today.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Welcomes Representative Bob Martinson’s 
grandsons to the meeting and tells a story about family. 
 
(2:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: We are going to be talking about Career 
and Technical Education (CTE) and that Levi Kinnischtzke is the one who takes care of a lot 
of the CTE info, but cannot be in attendance today.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I would like to cover how CTE and a few other 
department budgets may overlap and carry some of the same programs that would help sure 
up funding for other areas. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: On page 2 of the green sheets there were some 
significant audit findings, so if anyone has some questions about that. The move from 
Information Technology Department (ITD) over to CTE and would mean that 29.8 full time 
employees (FTE) would be moved along with another 0.5 FTE over to the counsel. So, 
$8.17M would go to ITD. 
 
(6:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: The third thing in the sheets that I saw 
$2.47M would be added for grant line item funding and would make a total of $23.25M. The 
Governor has an extra $2.477M recommended at that would be special funds. 
 
(7:10) Wayde Sick: The $4.77M was the budget stabilization funds that were placed in our 
budget to hold us even and it would put back in to the budget for K-12 funding.  
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Chairman Representative David Monson: Your reimbursement rate to the high schools, 
would that change? 
 
Mr. Sick: The $2.47M would still see a reduction in reimbursement rates and that is why we 
requested the additional $1M in the cost to continue.  
 
Becky Deichert: The request was for $1M, so you will not see that on the green sheet 
specifically. The Governor’s recommendation had $700,000 and not $1M. The $2.47M was 
to keep them hold from foundation aid last biennium and we moved it to general fund instead 
of special. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: It is coming from interest on Legacy Fund? 
 
Ms. Deichert: We took it straight from the General Fund. 
 
(10:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: You would still need another $1M to 
keep the reimbursement rates the same. 
 
Mr. Sick: Yes, that is correct. It would keep the rates the same. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: The Governor did not have that in there, but it 
was $700,000. What is your student reimbursement rate compared to a few years ago? 
 
Mr. Sick: I actually have all of the trends all the back to the 1980’s. Passed out attachment 
1 to the committee. The $23M is all for K-12. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: According to your sheet, the reimbursement for 
2017-2019 biennium was $20.77M. 
 
(13:15) Mr. Sick: To clarify, there are a few extra departments in there as well, not just K-12. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: I see in Ibar here that the department request was to reimburse 
at 40% and you are currently at 27%? 
 
Mr. Sick: No, that would not get us to the 40%, but the 40% is for the area career technical 
education centers and most of the high schools are funded at 27%. 
 
(14:00) Representative Mike Nathe: I have a question about the audit findings and the 
$100,000 that was awarded to you and you turned it into grant funds instead of returning it 
to the general fund. Did we give you the authority to move that money? 
 
Mr. Sick: I do not believe so, it was strictly for the STEM initiative and since the funds were 
not used, it would be the practice to use any remaining general funds to pay for any other 
CTE program and those funds were eliminated from this budget request. 
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(15:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: You mentioned Marketplace for Kids 
and that had a onetime fund of $300,000 and the Governor had no recommendation for this 
biennium on it.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: The centers have grants with a total of $2.4M 
and special funds were $4.7M. 
 
Ms. Deichert: Of the $300,000, $50,000 was from general fund and the rest came from 
foundation aid. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: How did we do foundation aid? We paid it in the 
formula? 
 
Ms. Deichert: It was a straight transfer over. 
 
(17:25) Chairman Representative David Monson: What do we want to do about 
Marketplace for Kids? 
 
(17:50) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: This does not mean that we cannot 
take money from somewhere else and move it around? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Correct, we can move it and take it from 
somewhere else. 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Where would you recommend it comes 
from? 
 
Mr. Sick: My recommendation would be to remove it from the optional adult farm 
management, but I would have to review that.  
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: You may want to do that because you might 
not like where we pull it from. 
 
(19:15) Representative Mike Nathe: Your thought is to fully fund it from general funds? 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: That would be my thought. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Are there more students taking CTE in 7th and 
8th and you do not reimburse that? 
 
Mr. Sick: Correct, and it is 27% reimbursement for 9-12th graders and 40% if they are in CTE 
center and those come out of the grants. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: 7th and 8th grades do what? 
 
(20:10) Mr. Sick: Mostly career development exploration that have instructors there and then 
some STEM programs.  
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Chairman Representative David Monson: How do they qualify? 
 
Mr. Sick: They would apply, submit a budget and then it would be reviewed and approved 
by our board. We have seen a steady increase of students taking CTE courses and we can 
get you a breakdown.  
 
(21:35) Chairman Representative David Monson: These may come out of a center? 
 
Mr. Sick: They may come out of a center and would need to receive certification. There are 
400 counselors throughout the state and around 100 are working with us and certified. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I asked for the number of students, but you used 
to reimburse at a higher level than you do now? What year did you cut it? 
 
Mr. Sick: Yes, we were up in the 33% in the mid 1990’s and the 2003 school year was a low 
and the last few years it has stayed consistent at 27%. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: And this works for you and the schools? 
 
(23:40) Mr. Sick: Yes, I believe 27% and 40% work. It covers salary and travel for instructors. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: And do you purchase equipment from that? 
 
Mr. Sick: So the grants are mostly to support the staff and we do buy some equipment, but 
not much and that usually comes from a different fund.   
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I promised Wayde we would talk about the 
career academies and we mentioned there may not be much appetite to fund the career 
academies because Bismarck built their own. 
 
(25:25) Representative Mark Sanford: I think it is a bigger issue than career academies, 
the state has not been the payer of school facilities and there are a couple of other bills that 
would pay down some loans for districts. I do not know if the state wants to get into the 
funding of all the buildings.  
 
Representative Mark Sanford: The bigger issue is starting with this type of facility; why 
would you not do that for K-12? That is the issue. 
 
Representative Mike Nathe: I agree; you are cracking that door open. Bismarck did it for 
themselves and reached out to the schools with their template and got that done. So I think 
something like Fargo can get it done through the Private Sector.  
 
(27:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: We do not build them for K-12, we just 
allow them to have a building fund and CTE does not have that luxury. The other thing is the 
Career academy is not just K-12, it goes through K-14.  
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Chairman Representative David Monson: My own thought on career academies, if you go 
through year 14, you are getting into higher education. I am not exactly a big fan of putting 
another one in because we have so many in the region. We would be adding basically 2 year 
colleges wherever someone would want to build them. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: If you want to fund these as a state, we have to have a 
discussion for what the model is because what works in Bismarck may not work somewhere 
else or there may be different areas of expertise and technology used.  
 
(30:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: This is $30M with a 50:50 match, for 
your enlightenment, we have been working on funding for higher education in their budgets 
on how we can create different ways for the colleges to come up with money for their own 
projects like deferred maintenance and how to get some of the bigger projects. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We are not done talking about that yet, but it 
could definitely relate somewhat to that.  
 
(33:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: I had some questions about the 
education technology council (ETC) in the green sheets. On page 2 in section 6 there are 2 
pieces of code where the ETC would appoint a director who would serve at the will of the 
council and has already been hired, correct? 
 
Mr. Sick: Correct. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Hired the director for the center of distance of 
education and that is Alan Peterson. You are okay with moving that from CTE to ITD and it 
would stay in Fargo? 
 
Mr. Sick: That is correct. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Committee, what are your feelings about the 
movement of distance education? 
 
(35:50) Representative Bob Martinson: We agree with moving that from ITD into this 
budget. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: That will explain why there is big spending in 
the general fund. What would that impact be? 
 
Ms. Deichert: We have $8.1M and there was a slight oversite, so we would need to add 
some special fund authority and I do not have that number on hand. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Why would you need special fund authority? 
 
Ms. Deichert: The center for distance education receives some fees for their services.  
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(37:25) Alan Peterson: We do charge fees, but the amount put in, $8.1M, does not account 
for the total of special funds, which used to be a part of it. Our total spent of special funds 
and general funds was just over $9M last biennium. 
 
Mr. Peterson: The $8.1M represents the 10% reduction that was asked for and the extra 
that was asked to be reduced. We had about 1/3 support from special funds for schools and 
2/3 support for general funds. We generally raise about $3M in fees, the average price is 
$169 for one student in one course. 
 
Mr. Peterson: Over the biennium, I do not know if we hit $3M, but that is used for operations, 
FTE and some fixed expenses like building lease and other places to be. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Is this on the NDSU campus? 
 
Mr. Peterson: As of 4 years ago, we looked into problems with mold and asbestos issues. I 
was told we owned the building, but it ended up being owned by NDSU. I went to them and 
told them that it would cost $2M to repair this building, so we asked permission to move to a 
rental. We are pretty close to Scheel’s arena in a suite. 
 
(41:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: Did they fix the mold issue? 
 
Mr. Peterson: They raised the building and it is now a parking lot.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So roughly 2/3 of your budget is general fund 
and is used to pay instructors and your other 1/3 is special funds. 
 
Mr. Peterson: Correct, we also have credit recovery courses if the students fail. Home 
schooled students have families pay and leave it up to the schools to decide for themselves. 
If a teacher cannot be found, we have to teach them and at smaller schools we could be a 
whole math or science department potentially.  
 
(43:15) Chairman Representative David Monson: The schools for deaf and blind have 
their own budget funding. Did you have your own separate budget from ITD? 
 
Mr. Peterson: It was a line item special fund in ITD. 
 
(44:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: Can you step up to the microphone Rosi 
and tell us your role and if your budget gets moved and how does that affect your salary? 
 
Adam Mathiak: I would have to check, but yes her salary would move over. 
 
(45:30) Rosi Kloberdanz: Director of the Education Technology Council. CTE currently 
reports to the ETC and the budget was not discussed by the board, but we did discuss the 
distance education into CTE and that was approved.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So EduTech is going to be following along, or 
are you staying with ITD? 
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(47:20) Ms. Kloberdanz: I believe I would stay with ITD and EduTech, but we have 
undergone a workplace assessment that outlines the shared work in Informational 
Technology (IT) services.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Dan, I think we need you. 
 
(48:15) Dan Sipes: I can give you a summary of how the budget is moving around in your 
bill and our bill. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So if we move the distance education from ITD 
into this budget, not everyone will be transferring? Is ITD’s budget in the house or senate? 
 
(49:10) Mr. Sipes: Our budget bill is HB 1021 and we are testifying soon. When you look at 
that budget, the ETC is the one being split in the Governor’s recommended budget. The 
administrative assistant and ETC grant authority is moving to CTE. 
 
Mr. Sipes: Rosi’s position is a dual role and we are retaining her to coordinate the IT delivery 
services to our K-12 clients. 
 
(50:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: We will have to coordinate with 
Government Operations. 
 
Mr. Sipes: Levi Kinnischtzke is also doing our budget, so he can advise these committees 
on the details.  
 
(51:45) Chairman Representative David Monson: Adds funding of $525,000 for workforce 
training grants.  
 
Adam Mathiak: The first page 2 of the green sheets has the outline you are looking for. 
 
(52:50) Chairman Representative David Monson: A total of $2.5 from the general fund and 
was not in the baseline? 
 
Adam Mathiak: A portion was and it would increase it by the $500,000 approximate increase, 
but it was in the baseline.  
 
Representative Mike Nathe: On line 18, you see the baseline of $2M with the addition of 
the $500,000.  
 
(54:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: We are going to take a quick break and 
we will return to CTE this afternoon.  
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Chairman Representative David Monson: Gavels in and opens up this portion of the 
meeting. Announces that a quorum is present and a few of the representatives will be 
returning after testifying. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: This morning we talked about Career and 
Technical Education (CTE) and some of the money going out, but now we would like to talk 
a bit about money coming in.  
 
(1:35) Chairman Representative David Monson: Levi Kinnischtzke is the authority on 
some of this, tell us what you know. 
 
(2:10) Levi Kinnischtzke: Some items I briefed them on this morning was the transfer of 
CDE from ITD (Information Technology Department) to CTE. A transfer of 29.8 FTE would 
go from Center for Distance Education (CDE) to CTE and that total would $8.7M. Of this, 
$5.7M is for salaries and wages, $2.5M is for operating expenses, $86,000 for a new FTE 
(full time employee) and $688,000 for other expenditures. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Their budget was $9M and due to the proposed cut, it is now at $8.1M. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Right now it is the $8.7M for the CTE budget from general funds. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Why are we looking at only general fund? 
 
(4:50) Mr. Kinnischtzke: That was the Governor’s recommendation and would use only 
general fund dollars. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: But special funds would still be used? 
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Mr. Kinnischtzke: Yes, but some schools spend their own money and then receive 
reimbursement as special funds due to the given special fund transfer authority.  
 
(5:45) Mr. Kinnischtzke: The $8.1M in general fund does not always match up with the 
green sheet. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I think we would want to keep them the same 
and not jump them up $3M. Keep it roughly 2/3 general funds and 1/3 special funds.  
 
(7:00) Mr. Kinnischtzke: When ITD did their budgeting, they reduced 1 FTE and it reduced 
to 28.8 FTE and after the proposed transfer, it would transfer 29.8 FTE and they will have to 
find one position cut in there.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I found a half FTE. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: That is for the education technology council (ETC). That ETC position 
would go to CTE. Rosi would be the EduTech director in ITD’s budget position.  
 
(9:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: Asks committee what they should do. I 
think we should leave the split the same because there will be money coming in and should 
be listed as special funds and should have the authority to spend that. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: This should not be funded 100% through 
general funds. If we did, we would have $3M less in general funds than the Governor’s 
recommendation.  
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Typically, 4 classes taken is around $500 and $169 is paid.  
 
(11:45) Chairman Representative David Monson: We can give them authority to spend 
the special funds they receive from classes and fees. We should not limit them on the ability 
to sell classes and they will have to come to the budget section to get approval to act on 
these contracts and classes.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So, what level do you want to fund them? The 
baseline budget for Center for Distance Education (CDE) was $9.7M in the last biennium and 
this can be found on page 3 of the green sheet. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I am just thinking we want to keep the general 
fund at around $6M and IBARS (Internal Budget Analysis and Reporting System) would be 
under ITD? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: I think the decision may be decided on what funding level you want in 
total and then 1/3 be the special fund spending authority.  
 
(15:35) Chairman Representative David Monson: Convert that baseline into this one and 
then try to at least make it the same in this budget as it was in the last and maybe add a little 
more. 
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Mr. Kinnischtzke: Of the $9M in ITD’s 2017-2019 appropriation for CDE, $6M was from the 
general fund and the other $3M was from special funds.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: That would save us another $3M in general 
funds that the Governor would prefer and keep our split. The question now is do we want to 
change it or leave it the same.  
 
Representative Bob Martinson: I do not think I want to decrease it. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I do not think I would either, but to spend the 
special funds, we will have to give them authority and possibly give them FTE’s. 
 
(17:55) Mr. Kinnischtzke: The same dollar amount of $6M from ITD’s budget and regarding 
special funds, do you want that to be the remaining balance to equal the $8.1M? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Just put it on the list that way for now, but we 
do not want to do it that way for the general funds.   
 
(18:50) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: I am confused using IBARS. I am 
trying to figure out how the figures shown relate to the information on our green sheets.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We are looking at the IBARS for the CTE 
budget. 
 
(21:30) Mr. Kinnischtzke: Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt’s question was what 
is included in the department’s optional request. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: There was $7.5M in optional ongoing requests and $250,000 of onetime. 
The optional request was $250,000 for Marketplace for Kids and the 3 items that were 
optional requests were for $700,000 for new and expanding programs, $1.3M to maintain 
current reimbursement rates and $5.5M increase to raise the reimbursement rates to 
schools. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: And he did not add that in? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Correct, that $50,000 for Marketplace for Kids is from general funds and 
last time $50,000 was from foundation aid and $250,000 was from general funds. 
 
(24:45) Ms. Deichert: It is earmarked for grants and it should have been $50,000 less than 
what was done. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So the new green sheets will reflect that? I 
guess if we acted on it, it would work. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We decided we wanted to keep Marketplace for 
Kids open. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: That was due to a measure passed from the 2016 general election. 
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Representative Mike Schatz: Was there a reason the Governor did not include the funding 
for Marketplace for Kids? Is it in any other funding bill? 
 
(27:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: He figured we would fund it and no, this 
is the only one. 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Is that $30M in there for Career Academies 
something we could use to fund Marketplace for Kids? 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: That $30M is not in there. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: It frees it up for us. Getting back to the funding 
source, we used $50,000 last time, is that available this time? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It is; the general fund is the more basic funding mechanism.  
 
(28:45) Chairman Representative David Monson: If it is available to us, we may as well 
fund it here. How would that impact the foundation aid? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Any funds appropriated would destabilize the foundation aid funds. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Do you know of other committee bills looking to 
tap into that? Could we take all $300,000 from there? 
 
Ms. Deichert: I know there is one bill out there using a revolving loan for school construction, 
but there would be $300,000 in there to use.  
 
Representative Bob Martinson: I think there is about $14M. We should pass this out without 
funding until the DPI (Department of Public Instruction) comes the second half and then we 
will have a full idea on how much to fund Marketplace for Kids. 
 
(31:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: This is just money sitting there and we 
could not make our foundation aid payments, that is when this would kick in? 
 
Ms. Deichert: 15% of the previous biennia’s fund would have to remain in the fund which is 
$155M that is available to spend.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: There would be a pecking order and this would 
be at the bottom. The odds of this happening are thin. 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: That money is in their budget now. That total dollar amount 
has not been used because the student count is unsure. 
 
(33:20) Ms. Deichert: In the 2017-2019 biennium, the legislature appropriated $295M to go 
toward the state school aid formula. But a portion of that has been spent.  
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Chairman Representative David Monson: The foundation aid stabilization fund is not 
tapped and is not used to pay the current biennium’s payment.  
 
Ms. Deichert: That $295M is allotted for that.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: The regular foundation aid payments come out 
of general funds and the other portion called the Common Schools. 
 
(34:55) Ms. Deichert: We put in $1.4M and the Common Schools portion is around $305M 
and the $295M from Foundation Aid. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So, Representative Bob Martinson you are 
saying you would fund it through DPI? 
 
Representative Bob Martinson: Yes, take it from DPI. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We would just send it through without funding 
for Marketplace for Kids and just use $300,000 from DPI. 
 
(36:20) Mr. Sick: That should not confuse it and funding it is the main priority. I would have 
to make sure Ms. Baesler wants that in her program area. It was CTE due to being a business 
feeder program, but the main point is to keep it funded.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So she will have to administer that. I am leaning 
to say just fund it in CTE’s budget. 
 
Mr. Sick: The local groups are in the Marketplace for Kids and there is a natural fit with CTE.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We will leave it in this budget. 
 
(38:10) Mr. Kinnischtzke: What amount? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Leave it at $300,000 for now. Mr. Skogen, can 
you explain TrainND?  
 
(39:00) Larry Skogen: Introduces self as the President of Bismarck State College. Passes 
out attachments 1 and 2 and begins to outline the purpose and function of TrainND on page 
1 of attachment 1.  
 
(41:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: Do you make money doing TrainND? 
 
Mr. Skogen: Some years it is more and some years it is less. We have made less since the 
oil boom. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: What do you do with the money? 
 
Mr. Skogen: We reinvest it into other programs. 
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Chairman Representative David Monson: So it is special fund money? 
 
(42:40) Mr. Skogen: If you look at the chart on the bottom of page 7 of attachment 1, 
roughly 2/3 of the money used to develop this program comes directly from the industry and 
colleges contribute the infrastructure. We get about 27% of the appropriated funds. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So you charge these companies to train their 
workers and other states don’t put any money in to this training. Idaho made $1M by not 
funding when we do fund it. Should you raise the cost to employers? 
 
Mr. Skogen: It is one thing to price something out for a large company, but 54% of companies 
that receive training are companies with less than 50 employees and are smaller. If we lose 
state funding, we will have to increase the price of training and the smaller companies will 
have to be phased out of this. 
 
(45:40) Mr. Skogen: The businesses are paying the lion’s share of it. If we lose the 27% we 
will have to price it higher and lose the smaller businesses, then fewer businesses will not 
use that training.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: This was originally designed to be a onetime 
fund back at its conception. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It is in their baseline and it is a line item in CTE’s budget for workforce 
training and that item is all TrainND. 
 
(47:55) Mr. Skogen: It was $2M last year.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: The 4 two-year colleges donate their heat, lights 
and buildings for this. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: Do the business payments count as the contributions such 
as technology given to the schools? 
 
Mr. Skogen: It does not include the contributions for technology. The example can be shown 
by Great River Energy who has given us power plant technology simulators to emulate their 
mechanisms and that is not included.  
 
(50:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: Mr. Skogen was telling me about his 
wind turbine and they do training on that. So if we do not fund it, then you will have to ask 
the industry to pay more and will end up paying more. They may or may not be as generous 
with the equipment they give to you because they are paying more. The training would not 
be worth much to them without proper equipment. 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: When you have a wind tower like that, do all of the wind 
companies in ND contribute or how does that work? 
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Mr. Skogen: If we are going to add something to the facilities, they are generally purchased 
using grants and contributions from whichever company is highly involved. If the other 
companies want to use that, they would have to contract out.  
 
(53:40) Mr. Skogen: Briefly explains the last few pages of attachment 1.  
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Total revenue is down $200,000, direct 
training revenue is down and events are down but time is up. How does that work? 
 
(55:30) Sara Vollmer: We do a lot of work with union workers to handle apprenticeship 
programs and the students have a lot of training hours and those can fluctuate a lot 
depending on the number of students and depends year to year. 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Looking into year 2019, would you see them 
continuing to drop? 
 
Ms. Vollmer: I would say yes. We do a lot of department training and for some that have had 
to cut their budgets, we will see less training from them due to lower funds. Oil and energy 
companies are seeing an increase in industry training. 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: When you have a reduction in revenue like 
that, how do you make up for it? 
 
Ms. Vollmer: Staff cuts and pay cuts to the instructors running those programs. 
 
(58:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: Do you have the flexibility to add and 
layoff or are you locked into that number of TrainND FTE’s? Can you go above a certain 
number of FTE’s? 
 
Ms. Vollmer: We left some open in case business increases, we would then have that 
flexibility to fill those positions, while saving money now. 
 
Ms. Vollmer: Lake Region State is a college that handles a lot of small businesses. Over 
75% of businesses in ND have less than 10 employees and that is especially seen in the 
Northeast quadrant and the cuts would be seen in the smaller companies. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So if we give money to CTE and they turn 
around and give that to you guys, is it still general fund money or would is become special 
funds? 
 
Ms. Vollmer: It would still be general funds. We utilize it to market to all corners of the state. 
 
(1:01:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: Bottineau is not a part of this? 
 
Ms. Vollmer: Correct. 
 
(1:01:40) Representative Mark Sanford: Is there any outstanding debt? 
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Ms. Vollmer: It is my understanding that Williston State College is the only one with this sort 
of debt and it is mainly due to the new building. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: Essentially the other 3 quadrants utilize already existing 
facilities.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So Williston went out and bought more facilities? 
 
(1:03:00) Mr. Skogen: During the oil boom they built that building. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Ms. Deichert, do you know what that debt might 
be? 
 
Ms. Deichert: I do not know that figure. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: The Governor did shave that because of the 
10% budget decrease.  
 
(1:04:30) Ms. Deichert: Item 9 on the green sheet and the $525,000 shows it is for workforce 
training, but actually for ongoing CTE. Workforce training is $1.825M and that difference is 
$700,000 and makes up the $2.5M. 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: I get frustrated that we keep moving this 
around. I am having a hard time following the money. 
 
Ms. Deichert: It is in the same line; it is not really in the right spot. We added $700,000 for 
continued work and should be in the grants line.  
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Is this done in other bills? 
 
(1:06:30) Ms. Deichert: We look at all of the green sheets. It is not necessarily wrong, just 
clumped together. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: It is clumped together and not detailed. You said 
$1.825M and $2.5M is the new number and that makes $700,000 and the green sheet shows 
$500,000. 
 
Ms. Deichert: The base shows $2M. 
 
(1:07:45) Mr. Sick: The current base for TrainND was $2M and was reduced by $174,000 
and brought it down to the $1.8M. We proposed the new and expanding and as the new CTE 
programs come online, we pull from that. This was added onto that line item instead of 
making its own.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Last year the baseline was $2M of general 
funds? 
 
Mr. Sick: Correct. 
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Chairman Representative David Monson: If we wanted to hold you we would be talking 
$2M and the $525,000 would be for high schools? 
 
(1:09:30) Mr. Sick: The high schools would use that to create a program through us. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Any new requests? 
 
Mr. Sick: Yes, we have 3 or 4 new requests for this spring. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: To clarify new and expanding, would this mean one that is 
totally new or something supported in the past? 
 
(1:10:30) Mr. Sick: New would mean brand new and expanding could mean something 
previous that lost interest and now interest has returned, so we bring it back online. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: If we do not give you this $525,000, could you 
continue these new programs? 
 
Mr. Sick: We would have to reduce reimbursement and we may not be able to start up these 
new programs. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Are these new programs due to newer schools 
popping up with higher enrollment. 
 
(1:12:20) Mr. Sick: I think you answered your own question, but yes, rising enrollment and 
newer schools popping up with innovation being present. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Any other items for the committee to write 
down? Leave it at $2M for now. 
 
(1:13:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: What about adult farm management? 
That one could be trimmed to help make the Governor’s cuts? 
 
Mr. Sick: That is correct. We trimmed the areas we figured could be cut or reduced. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: They would really have to ramp up spending 
and they will not have any carry over. If we funded at the level CTE had suggested to the 
Governor, then we will actually be taking a cut there and will get the same amount as they 
spent, not what was appropriated.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: This would go to the baseline budget. 
 
(1:15:20) Alex Mathiak: If you are cutting or reducing, it should cut from the baseline. 
 
Ms. Deichert: Yes, that would bring them down to $229,815.  
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(1:16:05) Chairman Representative David Monson: What do we want to do with adult farm 
management courses? 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Can you repeat why we went from the 
$579,000 down to the $229,000? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: They did not spend what was appropriated and 
we went down to what they did spend. 
 
(1:17:10) Mr. Sick: The large decrease was about $350,000. There is $1.5M in our grant line 
that could be moved into the adult farm management to better track those funds. It would 
bring the total of $2.1M down into around $1.6M. We have two separate line items for adult 
farm management and we would rather have 1 for transparency.  
 
Mr. Sick: The two line items are for adult farm management and the other item is a board 
discretionary item. 
 
(1:19:00) Representative Mike Schatz: Would that be designated for adult farm 
management or be board discretionary? 
 
Mr. Sick: Would that be designated for adult farm management and bring it out of the board 
discretion. If they are not used, they are returned to the general funds. 
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: So, we have the basis of $579,000 but a total 
of $2.1M? 
 
Mr. Sick: That is why I wanted to move it to one item. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So they are currently getting $2.1M between 
two line items of adult farm management and grants, but we could make it all through the 
adult farm management, but it will have to be subtracted out of the grants line. Adult farm 
management will increase.  
 
(1:22:00) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: Does that mean it stays in the 
base? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Yes, it will. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: That then reduces the grants line item and it has some 
flexibility for the board to transfer. Was this always movable? 
 
Mr. Sick: I am not sure why that dollar amount was placed in there. 
 
(1:23:25) Chairman Representative David Monson: I missed your comment and answer. 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: The $229,000, has that number been a lot more in the past? 
Were they spending the whole $2.1M? 
 



House Appropriations Committee - Education and Environment Division 
HB 1019 
1/21/2019 
Page 11  
   

Mr. Sick: I believe they have been decreasing and programs have been cut and there has 
been turnover. 
 
(1:24:50) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: My concern is the grants are part 
of the base and if they do not show up, do we just say though luck or do we refund them? 
Those are grants someone else puts in and if we do not get them, what happens? 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: That was my question of what happened and when they 
received transfer authority. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Adult farm management has its own line item, 
but what other grants do you give out that did not get spent or will not get spent? 
 
Mr. Sick: We planned to outline it on the spreadsheet we are making for you. 
 
(1:26:30) Chairman Representative David Monson: Representative Meier had a STEM bill 
and we are not sure where it came from. It may have come from this line item. You said they 
are STEM grants? 
 
Mr. Sick: Yes, that would be funded through CTE at $100,000 per biennium and it is in the 
base budget. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Is that still in there? Do you have discretion to 
use that to fund something else? 
 
Mr. Sick: If it is in discretion we would have to use it for exactly what it is listed as.  
 
(1:28:35) Chairman Representative David Monson: It is probably just mixed in with your 
base and the grants line item which is discretionary, correct? 
 
Mr. Sick: We would submit a request to the board and make sure that amount that the school 
is requesting is upheld. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So you will supply us with everything in that 
grant line and item and can you tell us if it is discretionary or set in stone? 
 
Mr. Sick: Yes, we can do that.  
 
(1:30:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: If we want to balance the budget, the 
$30M is a large plum.  
 
Mr. Sick: We can get you that on Wednesday. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Post-secondary goes to the colleges? 
 
(1:31:00) Mr. Sick: It will go to the specific colleges. They apply for them for a specific 
program and those can change yearly and by each program. 
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Chairman Representative David Monson: So you can only give out whatever money we 
put in there and that does not show up on the higher education budgets and only the 
community colleges could get this? 
 
Mr. Sick: Yes, all 5 community colleges including Bottineau have access.  
 
(1:32:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: $500,000 put in by the Governor. 
 
Mr. Sick: That is federal spending authority. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Your operating expenses shows a big jump, but 
that is because you are inheriting almost 30 FTE’s and that should be reduced in the ITD 
budget by a similar amount.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Salaries and wages would be the 29 FTE’s 
because operating is going to be running paper and costs through your books now.  
 
(1:34:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: We decided we are not going to do 
career academies, we are doing Marketplace for Kids, we will get a breakdown on grants, 
we will probably fund adult farm management after the level of submitted cuts, we decided 
we will allow the move for distance education and we have not appropriated any additional 
funds and our only decrease so far is adult farm management.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Tomorrow is commerce and we will stick with 
the smaller items.  
 
(1:37:05) Chairman Representative David Monson: Closes hearing on HB 1019. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state board for career 
and technical education. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments 1-3 

 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Gavels in the meeting and attendance is taken. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We are going to start today by working on 
Career and Technical Education (CTE) and hopefully get most of it finished today as well. 
Levi Kinnischtzke has a few items for us and we were given attachments 1, 2 and 3. 
 
(1:40) Mr. Kinnischtzke: Attachment 1 is a breakdown of the green sheet in an easier to 
read format. The first line is to remove one assistant program supervisor. The agency 
proposed it to the Governor and he included it in his. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The Governor recommended transferring the Center for Distance 
Education (CDE) and $8.1M from ITD (Information Technology Department) to CTE. They 
would like to go to the 2/3 general fund and 1/3 special fund with spending authority.  
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The salary number on the first page of attachment 1 shows the total 
number recommended and added up. 
 
(4:20) Chairman Representative David Monson: If we gave them more authority to gather 
more special funds by selling more courses, could they do that? Is there any reason why we 
could not make that $2.5M? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Yes, we could do that. In ITD’s budget for the last biennium for CDE was 
$3M. When ITD submitted their budget to the Governor, they included the 10% cuts as well.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Then I see no reason not to give them even $3M 
in special funds. It helps them if they can actually deliver more courses and collect more. 
Thoughts from the committee?  
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(6:45) Chairman Representative David Monson: What was their baseline in general funds? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: In 2017-2019 ITD, for general fund it was just over $6M and of that $5.8M 
was salary and the rest was operating expenses. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So it was about $6M and the cut took them to 
$5.7M. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: That includes temporary salaries and 1 FTE (full time employee) for CDE. 
 
(7:40) Chairman Representative David Monson: One program cut for an assistant program 
supervisor and I am okay with leaving that out. I would say 28.8 is fine and I see no reason 
to cut their special funds line item from $3M. 
 
(8:30) Representative Mark Sanford: On the transfer of CDE, this is bringing them over at 
the base level? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It was what was in ITD’s budget that is being transferred to CTE and it 
includes the $900,000 cut that ITD included when they submitted the budget to the Governor. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: So we are starting with the base budget that is last 
biennium’s number?  
 
(10:15) Mr. Kinnischtzke: This is a bit of an oddity because it is a new program in CTE, so 
we are reflecting what the Governor was recommending. If you guys want to restore CDE 
back to the level they received in the last biennium, it can be done.  
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Last biennium they were around $6M in general funds and $3M in special 
funds for $9M and they took a cut down to $8.1M. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We need to see the baseline. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The green sheet actually shows the baseline. As far as what is proposed 
versus the baseline, these sheets will show it. 
 
(12:25) Representative Bob Martinson: I am confused and what we have done in the past, 
the proposed changes are what we have proposed in the past.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I do like to have what the Governor has 
proposed. Let’s look at the green sheets. 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: We do not have the CDE base budget on the green sheets, 
right? 
 
(14:35) Chairman Representative David Monson: That would be correct. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: What is on attachment 1 includes the green sheet information laid out in 
an easier way. 
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Chairman Representative David Monson: Would it be possible for you to get us a sheet 
that has the baseline for CDE when it was still a part of ITD? 
 
(16:40) Chairman Representative David Monson: Calls a quick recess for Mr. Kinnischtzke 
to create another sheet.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state board for career 
and technical education. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Opens meeting and announces that all 
committee members are present. 
 
Levi Kinnischtzke: Begins to present attachment 1 page 1. 
 
(1:50) Chairman Representative David Monson: It shows 24.5 FTE (full time employee) 
currently and with the move of 29.8 FTE, they will be over double? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Correct, but they will be doing a different job because it is the merger with 
CDE (Center for Distance Education). Returns to presenting the figures from attachment 1. 
 
(5:45) Chairman Representative David Monson: All of the transfer funding is $0, but you 
talked about them. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: I talked about the CDE transfer from ITD (Information Technology 
Department) to CTE (Career and Technical Education). The zeroed out items are being 
moved around for more transparency. Moves onto one-time funding area on attachment 1.  
 
(7:15) Chairman Representative David Monson: I do not see anything else that we need 
to address. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: The $30M grant in one-time funding, what is that exactly?  
 
(7:55) Mr. Kinnischtzke: That funding was for the career academies. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: Are they the academies that would be split around the state 
or just Fargo? 
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Mr. Kinnischtzke: It was to be spread around the whole state. That was under an executive 
recommendation that would be comprised of CTE, Commerce, Job Service and DPI 
(Department of Public Instruction) for the Fargo workforce development council. 
 
Representative Mark Sanford: I wanted to get clarification in my mind. 
 
(9:40) Chairman Representative David Monson: The one in Fargo was all special funds, 
but those will have to be through high schools and by not putting it in the Commerce bill, we 
are not giving them our blessing. 
 
(10:15) Representative Mark Sanford: They can do these locally and regionally with their 
existing local resources. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: I do not know that they could put it on state land. 
Anything else on HB 1019? 
 
(11:00) Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: We are about $14.1M above last 
biennium? That includes our $2.2M? 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: That also includes transferring the 29.8 FTE. 
Are the salary increases including? 
 
(11:40) Mr. Kinnischtzke: Yes, I have included those. After adding in the compensation 
package for the CDE and ETC (Educational Technology Council) would be CDE would $9.1M 
and ITD about $771,000. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So we are around $10M for that transfer. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Yes, around $9.8M. 
 
(12:25) Chairman Representative David Monson: So yes, we are up, but it is well reasoned 
due to the large transfer. Who wants to carry this bill?  
 
Vice Chairman Representative Jim Schmidt: I think someone who has more information 
and experience with education should carry it. 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: Thank you for the endorsement.  
 
(13:40) Chairman Representative David Monson: Do you feel comfortable? There really 
is not anything we have talked about. We have cut a lot of stuff and the transfer itself is 
around $10M and if you add the raises, that is a big increase and explains why we have 
increased. 
 
(15:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: Closes meeting on HB 1019. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state board for career 
and technical education. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Opens meeting on HB 1019. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The first part of amendment 19.0207.01001 (attachment 1) for HB 1019 
shows the increases on page 1 of attachment 1. 
 
(00:30) Mr. Kinnischtzke: CDE (Centers for Distance Education) is $0 because it was in ITD 
(Information Technology Department), so the amount added from ITD to CTE (Career and 
Technical Education) is $9.1M.  
 
(1:15) Mr. Kinnischtzke: Outlines the grants items on page 1 of attachment 1. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: There is the grants post-secondary line that only has funding for the post-
secondary. 
 
(2:15) Mr. Kinnischtzke: The committee decided to keep workforce training at $2M. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Adult farm management is around $1.8M, where 
before it was split up between two line items and is now one. The $1.214M was taken out of 
the grants line item. 
 
(3:05) Mr. Kinnischtzke: There was a $300,000 cut in adult farm management.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: There was carryover swept back in, correct? 
The Governor recommended to sweep back the unspent money? They had $413,000 that 
did not get spent, I believe. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: I guess I am not aware of any carryover funding from that. 
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(4:15) Chairman Representative David Monson: They claimed that was money they 
wanted back in.  
 
Representative Tracy Boe: If my memory serves me, there were vacant instructor positions 
through the last biennium that were not spent and we adjusted that to reflect the unspent 
funds.  
 
(5:15) Representative Mark Sanford: I see this went up 20%, can you explain that? 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: The CDE went from ITD over to CTE, which was 29 FTE (full 
time employee). That is why there was such a huge increase.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: That was done well enough. 
 
(6:30) Mr. Kinnischtzke: The one-time funding approved by this agency is the school district 
and area center grants and Marketplace for kids. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Section 4 amends the Century Code to keep the ITD director in EduTech 
and transfers the director of ITD position to the director of CTE. 
 
(8:15) Representative Mike Schatz: There is a half FTE position from ITD and moved to 
CTE, why was that again? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The half person came over because that person is associated with the 
ITD and that person was a half-time FTE. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Is there a direct connection between the ETC 
(Education Technology Council) person and CDE? 
 
(9:35) Mr. Kinnischtzke: The ETC oversees CDE, but it is currently in ITD and the director 
of ETC and EduTech is staying with ITD. So, there would be no director for the ETC, so they 
are related. The director of CTE will now oversee that.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: That half FTE that is associated with the ETC 
will actually be Wayde Sick then, the head of CTE? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: That half FTE will be a separate person. 
 
(11:20) Mr. Kinnischtzke: Sections 5 and 6 on pages 3 and 4 of attachment 1 are outlined 
and correspond to section 7, which removes the sections from ITD’s chapter. It is just a 
correction and movement of language from their budget. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So this is all in the ITD budget language and is 
just being moved over? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Correct. 
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(13:10) Mr. Kinnischtzke: The Statement Purpose of Amendment (SPA) is listed on page 6 
of attachment 1 and describes the bill and amendment purpose. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: The total transfer is $8.85M, in which $5.8M is from general funds and 
the $3.05M is from other funds in the independent study fund. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: That is just students paying fees. 
 
(15:25) Mr. Kinnischtzke: The CDE item is all salary and the other is the operating 
expenses. You will notice that the CDE line items are a little over $9.1M and the difference 
between the $8.85M and the $9.1M is the increase in salary and compensation packages of 
the 2% and 2% increase.  
 
(16:35) Mr. Kinnischtzke: Because CDE and ETC are their own items, they will have their 
own line items and outlines the salaries and benefits, operating costs and etc. They will all 
be included on page 5 of attachment 1. 
 
(17:20) Mr. Kinnischtzke: A lot of this has already been discussed.  
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: No new dollars added there, just line item transfers. 
 
(18:25) Chairman Representative David Monson: So, we did not make reductions to those 
grants that go to secondary or post-secondary. I would guess we will get questions on why 
we did not reduce the secondary grants.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: We are encouraging kids to take more CTE 
courses and the reimbursements will not be as bid because there are more students and 
more programs and that is why we held it. Same amount split between a larger number of 
students and more programs. 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: Aren’t those coming out of the student grants.  
 
(20:35) Mr. Kinnischtzke: The amount coming out of the foundation aid is the $2.4M. The 
rest of the post-secondary grants is predominantly general funds. 
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: So the big chunk is general fund money. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: Of the $22.8M, the amount that is other funds is $2.4M from foundation 
aid and the remainder is general funds. 
 
(21:40) Chairman Representative David Monson: The grants on page 5 of attachment 1 
is all one-time funding. The $2.4M is coming from the foundation aid stabilization fund and 
the $300,000 is from Marketplace for kids. We did reduce the number of FTE by 1 and the 
rest are transferred over from ITD.  
 
Chairman Representative David Monson: Why did we cut that? The Governor 
recommended and identified cutting that I believe.  
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Mr. Kinnischtzke: It was a vacant position.  
 
(24:10) Chairman Representative David Monson: Any other questions? It is possible to 
have HB 1016 and HB 1019 out tomorrow. 
 
(26:00) Chairman Representative David Monson: You and Mr. Kinnischtzke can hash 
things out after. Motion to adopt amendment made by Representative Mike Schatz and 
Representative Tracy Boe seconded. Motion carries via voice vote with 7 yeas, 0 nays 
and 0 absent. 
 
(26:45) Chairman Representative David Monson: Motion for Do Pass as amended 
made by Representative Mike Schatz and seconded by Representative Mike Nathe. 
Roll Call Vote is taken. Motion carries with 7 yeas, 0 nays and 0 absent. 
 
(27:40) Chairman Representative David Monson: Closes meeting on HB 1019. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the state board for career 
and technical education. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Jeff Delzer: Opens hearing on HB 1019. 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: Begins to outline amendment 19.0207.01001 to the 
committee.  
 
(1:40) Representative Mike Schatz: That transfer of CDE (Center for Distance Education) 
comes from ITD (Information Technology Department). 
 
Representative Corey Mock: The FTE (full time employee) that was removed, ITD was 
removing one of the FTE and was that before the transfer? 
 
Representative David Monson: I believe that is a separate one. 
 
(2:55) Representative Mike Schatz: Returns to page 1 of amendment 19.0207.01001. 
 
(5:55) Chairman Jeff Delzer: On adult farm management, it looks like you are adding $1.2M, 
is that correct? 
 
Representative David Monson: We reduced adult farm management, but this is very 
complicated because it was mixed up with grants. We took it out of the grants line item and 
moved them into their own line item. The $579,822 was in the base and there was a large 
amount in the grants line item. We thought rather than complicating it, we wanted to put it all 
together in one line. This is the total amount now. 
 
Chairman Jeff Delzer: You better be prepared to mention that on the floor Representative 
Mike Schatz. 
 
(7:45) Representative Mike Schatz: Returns to page 1 of amendment 19.0207.01001.  
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Chairman Jeff Delzer: Is that something you want to do every session? This is foundation 
stabilization aid and that is usually one-time funding. Is this something that we think needs 
to be funded and is foundation aid the right place to take that from? 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: We did not get into that. 
 
(9:35) Representative David Monson: What we talked about was trying to keep it the same 
when they made a case for what they needed. 
 
Chairman Jeff Delzer: Was it funded before last biennium? Why did we call it one-time 
funding, I am guessing that is because we took it from somewhere else? 
 
(10:15) Mr. Kinnischtzke: In order to replenish the CTE (Career and Technical Education) 
budget, foundation aid stabilization money was used to bring them whole after cuts. The 
money was made available to them through a constitutional measure.  
 
Chairman Jeff Delzer: It was general fund before. We should maybe move that back to 
general fund before. Where is the Marketplace for kids money coming from? That must be 
general fund. If it is something that you think should continue, does it not belong in the grants 
line? 
 
Representative David Monson: Marketplace for kids was one-time funding last time. It has 
been funded before. 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It has been funded for a while, but last session was the first time it was 
one-time funding. 
 
(12:30) Chairman Jeff Delzer: One-time funding is for infrastructure that is not normal. I 
know we are pretty tight in the stabilization aid. The Governor was taking a lot out of there, 
but that was for next time.  
 
Representative David Monson: This $300,000 is one-time because it was last time and we 
do not know what our future will bring. We wanted to talk about it every session and revisit 
the need for it and keep up with the growth progress of it.  
 
Chairman Jeff Delzer: It should be looked at each time. 
 
Representative David Monson: We could give them their own line item. We took $22M out 
of the $30M and made them their separate line items. We felt that it was a very good program 
and we left it as one-time, but we could make it a grants line item. 
 
(14:40) Chairman Jeff Delzer: Have the school districts and area center grants changed 
any? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: That is correct. The amounts that were transferred from the grants line 
items were transferred and one of the new items is the grants stash secondary line item. 
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Chairman Jeff Delzer: You have split that up a little bit, but it is $22M and a part of the $30M. 
You must have increased the secondary and post-secondary quite a bit? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: There is an increase in around $1.8M, but that is because the grants were 
not included last session and were one-time. They are included in the total in the bill and 
ongoing funding is including. 
 
(16:45) Chairman Jeff Delzer: Then we can adopt this amendment, but we need to move 
those up. I think we should switch it to general fund money. Sections 4 and 5 are about the 
transfer? 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: Yes. 
 
Representative Thomas Beadle: I was wondering if the money for CTE training was in 
here? 
 
(18:00) Chairman Delzer: That is not included and is in Commerce. 
 
Representative Mike Schatz: I move to adopt amendment 19.0207.01001 and 
Representative David Monson seconds.  
 
Representative David Monson: We have to adopt this and further amend. 
 
Chairman Jeff Delzer: Any further discussion? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: I wanted to answer a question regarding the removal of 1 FTE. It was a 
part of meeting the Governor’s recommendation.  
 
(19:30) Voice vote, motion carried. 
 
Representative David Monson: I move to further amend HB 1019 to move the one-time 
funding description for the school district and area center grants and Marketplace for kids to 
general fund and not one-time funding. 
 
(20:30) Chairman Jeff Delzer: New line grants motion made by Chairman Representative 
David Monson and seconded by Representative Mark Sanford. We have a motion to 
further amend and move school district and area center grants and Marketplace for 
kids to their own line items. Voice vote, motion carries. 
 
(21:30) Representative Corey Mock: I would move that we reduce 1 more FTE from the 
transfer of CDE to CTE.  
 
Representative David Monson: I would second that. We visited a little bit about this 
and made sure it is a straight transfer. 
 
(22:45) Chairman Jeff Delzer: Further discussion? Motion made by Representative 
Mock and seconded by Representative David Monson to reduce 1 more FTE.  
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Representative Randy Schobinger: Where do we make that reduction if I want to write it 
down? 
 
Mr. Kinnischtzke: It is in one of the footnotes of amendment 19.0207.01001. 
 
 
(23:50) Representative David Monson: In the amendment, you can take the full time 
equivalence, the line would be 28.3 FTE and the final number would be 52 FTE. 
 
(24:20) Chairman Jeff Delzer: Voice vote to further amend on motion to remove 1 more 
FTE. Motion carries.  
 
Representative Mike Schatz: Motion to do pass as amended, seconded by 
Representative David Monson. Clerk takes roll call vote. Motion carries with 20 yes, 1 
nay and 0 absent. Representative Mike Schatz will carry the bill. 
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